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From: 
     Kenneth Malinowski  
     c/o 75 W. Nuevo Rd. E. PMB 106 
     Perris, CA   92571 
 

December 8, 2014 
 

To:  
     Governor Jerry Brown  California Franchise Tax Board 
     c/o State Capitol, Suite 1173 P.O. Box 942867 
     Sacramento, CA 95814 Sacramento, CA 94267-0001 
 
Re: This is a verified criminal complaint for violations of laws of the United States on the part of 
California State officials, employees, and agents. 
 
Governor Jerry Brown,  

 I, Kenneth Malinoswki  (hereinafter “Complainant”), am writing to inform you that you 

(the Franchise Tax Board of California, hereinafter “FTB”) are engaged in conduct which stands 

in plain violation of laws of the United States, specifically but not limited to 18 USC §§ 241, 

1341, 1343, 1951, and 1962. 

 
COUNT I: 18 USC § 241 Conspiracy against rights. 

 
 With full knowledge of the law (Cal. Code §§ 17081, 17201, and 18031) and its proper 

application and operation, the Defendants and similarly situated associates, agents, employees, 

and officials, have chosen to set these provisions aside for the sake of obtaining money and 

property from the Complainants which they do not owe under the law, in violation of 18 USC § 

241 Conspiracy against rights.  

 
COUNTS II and III: 18 USC §§ 1341 Frauds and swindles (mail fraud) and  

§ 1343 Fraud by wire, radio, or television. 
 
 With the full understanding that their conduct is founded upon fraud, accomplished solely 

through the complexities of he law, Defendants and similarly situated associates, agents, 

employees, and officials, have employed schemes involving the US mails and the internet (See 

https://www.ftb.ca.gov/aboutFTB/MisPrin.shtml?WT.mc_id=AboutUs_Mission) where false 

statements, misrepresentations of the law, and threats are displayed, conveyed, and lodged to and 
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against the residents of California each day. This conduct stands in plain violation of 18 USC § 

1343 Frauds and swindles and 18 USC § 1343 Fraud by wire, radio, or television. 

 
COUNT IV: 18 USC § 1951 Interference with commerce by threats or violence. 

 
 With full knowledge that their conduct is prohibited by law, the Defendants and similarly 

situated associates, agents, employees, and officials, have engaged in robbery and extortion to 

obtain articles in commerce such as money and other property from residents of California who, 

in fact, owed nothing. This conduct stands in plain violation of 18 USC § 1951 Interference with 

commerce by threats or violence. 

 
COUNT V: 18 USC § 1962 Prohibited activities (RICO). 

 
 With full knowledge that their conduct is prohibited by law, and that the law does not 

operate as they have represented it to the residents of California, Defendants have engaged in a 

pattern of fraud and deception, accomplished through threat, duress, and coercion, to extort 

money and other property from individuals and businesses which the law does not require, in 

plain violation of 18 USC § 1962 Prohibited activities. 

 
Authorities:  

 The authorities below suffice to prove the legality of the arrest of the person of a suspected 

felon without a warrant by a private person acting upon reasonable cause and suspicion as a 

clearly established right. The right of citizen’s arrest extends to any felony violation, state or 

federal, and is governed by state law. (See Brady v. US, 300 F. 540 (CA6  1924); US v. Coplon, 

185 F.2d 629 (CA2 1950); Richardson v. US, 217 F.2d 696 (CA8 1954); Ward v. US, 316 F.2d 

113 (CA9  1963); Elkanich v. US, 327 F.2d 417 (CA9 1964); US v. Swarovski, 557 F.2d 40 (CA2 

1977); Dorsey v. US, 174 F.2d. 899 (CA5  1949)).  

 
“The rule seems to be similar when as arrest is a so-called citizen’s arrest, made by one not 
a law enforcement officer, it requires reasonable cause to believe the arrested party 
guilty of a felony before the arrest will support a search and seizure of evidence 
of crime. Information, belief, or suspicion as to commission of a felony, as 
jurisdiction for arrest by a private person without a warrant; 133 A.L.R. 608 
(1941).” 
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See State v. Jack, 63 Wn.2d 632, 388 P.2d 566 (1964); see also State v. Darst, 65 Wn.2d 

808, 811-12, 399 P.2d 618 (1965); State v. Williams, 27 Wn.App. 848, 621 P.2d 176 

(1980); State v. Harp, 13 Wn.App. 239, 534 P.2d 842 (1975); State v. Clarke, 61 Wn.2d 

138, 377 P.2d 449 (1962)). 

 In relation to citizen’s arrest, a state may even derogate to extend the right to 

apply to the arrest of one who has committed a  mere misdemeanor. 

 
“In Arizona, statutes that are in derogation of the common law are strictly 
construed. See Foundation Dev. Corp. v. Loehmann’s, 163 Ariz. 438, 444, 788 
P.2d 1189, 1195 (1990). In the case of misdemeanors  such as shoplifting, there is 
no common law privilege of arrest. Gortarez v. Smitty’s Super Valu, Inc., 140 
Ariz. 97, 102, 680 P.2d 807, 812 (1984). A.R.S. § 13-1805 is in derogation of the 
common law because it allows private individuals to detain persons suspected of 
shoplifting. Therefore, A.R.S. § 13-1805 must be strictly construed to only permit 
detention of “persons suspected” of shoplifting.” 

 
See Shelburg v. City of Scottsdale, #CV-09-1800-PHX-NVW, USDC Arizona (8/23/2010).  

 Recent decisions relating to citizen’s arrest include US v. Fullbright, 105 F.3d 443 

(CA9 1995) in MT; US v. Grigg, 498 F.3d 1070 (CA9 2007) in OR; Tekle v. US, 457 F.3d 

1088 (CA9 2005) in CA; Rhomberg v. Wilson, 108 F.3d 339 (CA9 1996) in CA; Collins v. 

Womancare, 878 F.2d 1145 (CA9 1989); Hopkins v. Bonvicino, 573 F.3d 752 (CA9 2008). 

 
 “Under all of the facts it is established to my satisfaction that the arrest was lawful and the 
search incident to it. This made the evidence admissible. Reasonable cause to believe that 
felony has been committed and the arrested person committed it are sufficient to legalize 
the arrest even if made by private citizens. (See Fernandez v. Klinger, 346 F.2d 210, 211-
12 (CA9 1965); Elkanich v. US, 327 F.2d 417 (CA9 1964), cert. den. 377 US 917; Ward 
v. US, 316 F.2d 113 (CA9 1963), cert. den. 375 US 862; Richardson v. US, 217 F.2d 
696 (CA8 1964); US v. Coplon, 185 F.2d 629, 634, 28 A.L.R.2d 1041 (CA2 
1950), cert. den. 342 US 920; Dorsey v. US, 174 F.2d 899 (CA6 1949), cert. den. 
388 US 950 and 340 US 878; State v. McClung, 66 Wash.2d 654, 404 P.2d 460 
(1965).” 
 

See Jack v. Rhay, 366 F.2d 191 (CA9  1966). And -  
 
 “In California, the defense of citizen’s arrest mandates in pertinent part that a private 
person may arrest another for a public offense committed or attempted in his presence. See 
Cal. Penal Code § 837. “An arrest is taking a person into custody, in a case and in the 
manner authorized by law. An arrest may be made by a peace officer or by a private 
person.” Id. § 834.” 
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See Huang v. McEwen, Civil #09-0355-PA-JCG (USDC Central Dist. of Cal. April 26, 2012). 

 This collection of relevant decisions, from appellate and district courts across the country, 

make clear and firmly establishes that the right to arrest a felon at large is entirely legal for 

anyone who has reasonable suspicion that the person to be arrested is indeed guilty of having 

committed the crime. The Supreme Court has held that: 

 
“[W]e have referred to the Court of Appeals when enquiring whether a right was “clearly  
established.” “ 

 
See United States v. Lanier, 520 US 259, 269, 137 L.Ed.2d  432, 117 S.Ct. 1219 (1997) (citing 

Mitchell v. Forsyth, 427 US 511, 533, 86 L.Ed.2d 411, 105 S.Ct. 2806 (1985); Davis v. Scherer, 

468 US 183, 191-92, 82 L.Ed.2d. 139, 104 S.Ct. 3012 (1984);  Elder v. Halloway, 510 US 510, 

516, 127 L.Ed.2d 344, 114 S.Ct. 1019 (1994) (treating Court of Appeals decisions as “relevant 

authority” that must be considered as part of qualified immunity enquiry)). 

 It is also clear that the individual’s right to arrest a felon at large is independent of the 

opinion and discretion of governmental authorities, that it doesn’t require the intervention of the 

courts, that no prior approval on the part of law enforcement authorities need be sought in 

advance of making such an arrest. Nowhere was there any mention of an exclusion of any 

particular felon or felony violation from this clearly established right. 

 The relevance of this notification to you is in the fact that you are, through your chosen 

conduct, depriving me of the provisions of controlling provisions of California law. For the 

purposes of California state income taxes, 26 USC §§ 71-90, §§ 161-197, §§ 211-220, §§ 261-

280H, and §§ 1001-1092 have been incorporated by reference as applicable under California law 

for the calculation and imposition of income taxes on income received in the form of 

compensation for services. 

 
California Code § 17201. (a) Part VI of Subchapter B of Chapter 1 of Subtitle A of the 
Internal Revenue Code, relating to itemized deductions for individuals and corporations, 
shall apply, except as otherwise provided. (26 USC §§ 161-197). 
 (b) Part VII of Subchapter B of Chapter 1 of Subtitle A of the Internal Revenue 
Code, relating to additional itemized deductions for individuals, shall apply, except as 
otherwise provided. (26 USC §§ 211-220). 
 (c) Part IX of Subchapter B of Chapter 1 of Subtitle A of the Internal Revenue 
Code, relating to items not deductible, shall apply, except as otherwise provided. (26 
USC §§ 261-280H). 
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§ 17081.  Part II of Subchapter B of Chapter 1 of Subtitle A of the Internal Revenue 
Code, relating to items that are specifically included in gross income, shall apply, except 
as otherwise provided. (26 USC §§ 71-90).   
 
§ 18031.  Subchapter O of Chapter 1 of Subtitle A of the Internal Revenue Code, relating 
to gain or loss on disposition of property, shall apply, except as otherwise provided. (26 
USC §§ 1001-1092). 

 
 See Hassett v. Welch, 303 U.S. 303, 314-16 at [3,4] (1938) (statute adopts another by reference, 

quoting Lewis’ Sutherland on Statutory Construction). See also, Doctrine of Expressio unius est 

exclusio alterius. Note that this incorporation of these federal statutes into state law includes the 

specific incorporation of 26 USC §§ 83, 212, 1001, 1011, and 1012; these are laws of California 

under §§ 17201(a), (b), (c), 17081, and 18031 of the California Code. 

  The Complainant receives only compensation for services actually rendered. “Section 

83(a) explains how property received in exchange for services is taxed.” 1 “At the heart of this 

case is I.R.C. § 83, which governs the taxation of property transferred in connection with the 

performance of services.”2 Section 83 applies to all compensation paid for services of 

corporations, and for the services of individuals.3 Labor is property.4 The fair market value 

(“FMV”) of property is established through the terms of an “arm’s length transaction.”5  

 
Robinson v. C.I.R., 82 USTC 444, 459 (1984); “The legislative history of section 83 does 
not require the conclusion that the statute should be applied to tax-avoidance techniques 
only. To the contrary, the House and Senate reports specifically delineate transactions 
and transfers to which section 83 was not to apply and do not exclude from its purview 
contractual provisions that were not tax motivated.”  
 
Cohn v. C.I.R., 73 USTC 443, 446 (1979): “Petitioners rest their entire case on the 
proposition that Elovich and Cohn and/or Mega were “independent contractors” and not 
employees of the Integrated and that, therefore, section 83 does not apply to the 

                                                 
1  See Montelepre Systemed, Inc. v. C.I.R., 956 F.2d 496, 498 (CA5 1992). 
2  See Gudmundsson v. United States, 634 F.3d 212 (CA2 2011). 
3 See 26 CFR 1.83-3(e), (f); MacNaughton v. C.I.R., 888 F.2d 418 (CA6 1989); Pledger v. C.I.R., 641 
F.2d 287 (CA5 1981); Alves v. C.I.R., 734 F.2d 478, 481 (CA9 1984); Klingler Electric Co. v. C.I.R., 776 
F.Supp. 1158, 1164 at [1] (S.D.Miss. 1991); Robinson v. C.I.R., 82 USTC 444 (1984); Cohn v. C.I.R., 73 
USTC 443, 446 (1979).  
4 See Butcher’s Union Co. v. Crescent City Co., 111 U.S. 746, 757 (1883); Slaughterhouse Case, 83 U.S. 
395, 419; 16 Wall. 36-130 (1873); Adair v. U.S., 208 U.S. 161, 172 (1908); Coppage v. Kansas, 236 U.S. 
1 (1915); Black’s, 6th, “property.”  
5 See 27 CFR 70.150(b); U.S. v. Cartwright, 411 U.S. 546, 552 (1973); Hicks v. U.S., 335 F.Supp. 474, 
481 (Colo.1971); Pledger v. C.I.R., supra; Black’s, 6th, “Arm’s length transaction.”  
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acquisition of the shares from Integrated. They rely on the legislative history surrounding 
the statute to support their proposition that section 83 was intended to apply only to 
restricted stock transferred to employees. Respondent contends that the words “any 
person” in section 83(a) encompass independent contractors as well as employees. We 
agree with Respondent. . . .  We reject petitioner’s argument. While restricted stock plans 
involving employers and employees may have been the primary impetus behind the 
enactment of section 83, the language of the section covers the transfer of any property 
transferred in connection with the performance of services “to any person other than 
the person for whom the services are performed.” (Emphasis added.) The legislative 
history makes clear that Congress was aware that the statute’s coverage extended 
beyond restricted stock plans for employees. H.Rept. 91-413 (Part 1) (1969), 1969-3 
C.B. 200, 255; S.Rept. 91-552 (1969), 1969-3 C.B. 423, 501. The regulations state that 
that section 83 applies to employees and independent contractors (sec. 1.83-1(a), 
Income Tax Regs.). There is no question but that, under the foregoing circumstances, 
these regulations are not “unreasonably and plainly inconsistent with the revenue 
statutes.” Consequently, they are sustained. (cites omitted)”  
 
MacNaughton v. C.I.R., 888 F.2d 418, 421 (CA6 1989): “The Alves court stated that the 
plain language of section 83 belied this argument because the “statute applied to all 
property transferred in connection with the performance of services” and because no 
reference is made to the term “compensation.” Id. The court further concluded in Alves 
that “if Congress had intended section 83(a) to apply solely to restricted stock used to 
compensate employees, it could have used much narrower language.” Id. at 481-82. 
Upon consideration, we agree with the interpretation advanced by the Alves court and, 
therefore, join the Ninth Circuit in holding that section 83 is not limited to stock 
transfers which are compensatory in nature.”  
 
Pledger v. C.I.R., 641 F.2d 287, 293 (CA5 1981): “The taxing scheme imposed by 
Congress more accurately reflects what taxpayer received as compensation than a 
scheme that taxes the taxpayer on merely a portion of the compensation.”  
 
Alves v. C.I.R., 734 F.2d 478, 481 (CA9 1984): “The plain language of section 83(a) 
belies Alve’s argument. Section 83(a) applies to all property transferred in connection 
with the performance of services. No reference is made to the term “compensation.” Nor 
is there any statutory requirement that property have a fair market value in excess of the 
amount paid at the time of transfer. Indeed, if Congress had intended section 83(a) to 
apply solely to restricted stock used to compensate its employees, it could have used 
much narrower language. Indeed, Congress made section 83(a) applicable to all 
restricted “property,” not just stock; to property transferred to “any person,” not just to 
employees; and to property transferred “in connection with . . . services,” not just 
compensation for employment. See Cohn v. Commissioner, 73 USTC 443, 446-47 
(1979).”  
 
Concurring with Cohn, Alves, see Centel Communications Co. v. CIR, 920 F.2d 1335, 
1342 (CA7 1990). 
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Klingler Electric Co. v. C.I.R., 776 F.Supp. 1158, 1164 at [1] (S.D.Miss. 1991): “Section 
83(a) applies to all property transferred in connection with the performance of 
services.”  
 
Montelepre Systemed, Inc. v. C.I.R., 956 F.2d 496, 498 at [1] (CA5 1992): “Section 83(a) 
explains how property received in exchange for services is taxed.”  
 
Gudmundsson v. US, 634 F.3d 212 (CA2 2011): “At the heart of this case is I.R.C. § 83, 
which governs the taxation of property transferred in connection with the performance 
of services.” 

 
 The Complainant charges here and now that the California Franchise Tax Board 

(hereinafter “FTB”) never gives § 83 a moment’s thought in its enforcement of California law, 

and declares that it has never inquired to him as to whether he received anything but 

compensation for his personal services, the taxation of such being “governed” by § 83; the 

statute has not operated. 

 It is apparent that the sum of respect due Tax Code § 83(a) is to call all references to it 

“without merit on its face.” It is argued, with four Supreme Court decisions (infra) in support, 

that the terms “any money or property” (26 CFR 1.83-3(g)) and “cash or other property” (26 

CFR 1.1012-1(a)) are inclusive of all property.  

 In US v. Warner, #3:07-CR-00123-RRB US Dist. Court in Anchorage, AK (2008), the 

Dept. of Justice was faced with this challenge concerning the universally applicable and 

controlling 26 USC § 83 and was unable to go on record with its own interpretation of the 

statute: 

 
 “COMES NOW Plaintiff United States of America in response to 
“DEFENDANT’S MOTION TO DISMISS Counts 1, and 3-6 of indictment for lack of in 
personam jurisdiction, essential elements; operation of 26 U.S.C. § 83” filed at Docket 
No. 84. While the argument and legal basis are unclear, the defendant appears to raise 
frivolous, oft-rejected claims that his income is not taxable and the Court has no 
jurisdiction over him.  
 In the first place, the claim is essentially an insufficiency of the evidence claim, a 
matter not cognizable in a motion to dismiss. “An indictment is sufficient if it contains 
the element of the charged crime in adequate detail to inform the defendant of the charge 
and enable him to plead double jeopardy.” United States v. Alber, 56 F.3d 1106, 1111 (9th 
Cir. 1995) (citations omitted). “The indictment should be read in its entirety, construed 
according to common sense, and interpreted to include facts which are necessarily 
implied.” United States v. DeSalvo, 41 F.3d 505, 513 (9th Cir. 1994). 
 Under Fed.R.Crim.P. 7(c) and indictment is generally sufficient if it tracks the 
language of the statute. United States v. Musacchio, 968 F.2d 782,787 (9th Cir. 1991). See 
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also Miller v. Stagner, 757 F.2d 988, 994 (9th Cir. 1995) (information that tracks 
applicable statute affords defendant fair notice of crime charge; indictment need not 
specify mental state required for conspiracy). The defendant cites United States v. 
Gordon, 780 F.2d 1165 (5th Cir. 1986) for the proposition that indictment language that 
tracks the statute is not sufficient to inform the defendant of the charges against him. In 
fact, Gordon held that “An indictment is sufficient if it contains the elements of the 
offense charged, fairly informs the defendant what charge he must be prepared to meet, 
and enables the accused to plead acquittal or conviction in bar of future prosecutions for 
the same offense.” 780 F.2d at 1169 (citing Hamling v. United States, 418 U.S. 87 
(1974)).  
 The Gordon court went on to state that “The test for validity is not whether the 
indictment could have been framed in a more satisfactory manner, but whether it 
conforms to minimal constitutional standards. Furthermore, it is generally sufficient that 
an indictment set forth the offense in the words of the statute itself as long as the statutory 
language unambiguously sets out all the elements necessary to constitute the offense.” Id. 
(citations omitted). See also United States v. Vroman, 975 F.2d 669, 670-71 (9th Cir. 
1992). In a similar vein, the Ninth Circuit rejected the argument that an indictment 
charging a violation of 26 U.S.C. § 7206 and setting forth the elements of the offense was 
insufficient because the CFR provisions dealing with the enforcement of section 7206 
reference the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms, an agency unrelated to the case 
against the defendant. United States v. Cochrane, 985 F.2d 1027, 1031 (9th Cir. 1993). An 
indictment need only provide “the essential facts necessary to apprise a defendant of the 
crime charged; it need not specify the theories or evidence upon which the government 
will rely to prove those facts.” Id.  
 A pretrial motion to dismiss an indictment under Fed R.Crim.P. 12 (b) may be 
considered by the District court only if it is capable of determination without the trial of 
the general issue – i.e., if it involves questions of law rather than fact. United States v. 
Nukida, 8 F.3d 665, 669 (9th Cir 1993). The court can analyze questions of law at this 
point, but it may not invade the province of the jury as the ultimate fact finder. 
 Therefore, the defendant’s attack on the sufficiency of the indictment is simply 
premature, as it is in reality nothing more than a pretrial attack on the sufficiency of the 
evidence. The government expects to prove at trial that the defendant evaded the payment 
of income taxes and willfully signed false income tax returns. The defendant may move 
pursuant to Fed.R.Crim.P.29 at the close of evidence if he then believes we have failed to 
do so.  
 The basis for his challenge appears to be akin to a “wages are not income” or 
“fair market value exchange” argument that has been rejected for decades.  
 The Supreme Court has defined income as “the gain derived from capital, from 
labor, or from both combined . . . .” Eisner v. Macomber, 252 U.S. 189, 207 (1920). 
Section 61(a) of Title 26 of the United States Code defines gross income as “all income 
from whatever source derived, including . . . (1) Compensation for services . . ..” Wages 
or salaries received in exchange for services rendered are income that must be reported 
on a tax return. Commissioner v. Glenshaw Glass Co., 348 U.S. 426, 429-33 (1955); 
Commissioner v. Smith, 324 U.S. 177, 181 (1945); United States v. Romero, 640 F.2d 
1014, 1016 (9th Cir. 1981). Courts uniformly interpret “income” to include wages and 
salaries. Connor v. Commissioner, 770 F.2d 17, 20 (2d Cir. 1985) (“The argument that 
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they are not has been rejected so frequently that the very raising of it justifies the 
imposition of sanctions”). 
 The argument that payments for services can only be taxed to the extent that the 
fair market value of the compensation exceeds the value of the services, which the 
defendant specifically makes, is also frivolous. See United States v. Buras, 633 F.2d 
1356, 1361 (9th Cir. 1980). 
 Finally, the defendant appears to argue that the Court lacks in personam 
jurisdiction over him, although he provides no authority for this premise. Despite his 
claims to the contrary, it is clear that United States District Courts have jurisdiction over 
criminal offenses enumerated in the Internal Revenue Code, notwithstanding the absence 
of a statute within Title 26 conferring such jurisdiction. Section 3231 of Title 18 of the 
United States Code gives the district courts original jurisdiction over “all offenses against 
the laws of the United States,” and the Internal Revenue Code defines offenses against 
the laws of the United States. See, e.g., United States v. Przybyla, 737 F.2d 828, 829 (9th 
Cir. 1984); United States v. Amon, 669 F.2d 1351, 1355 (10th Cir. 1981)(“frivolous and 
without merit” ); United States v. Collins, 920 F.2d 619, 628-29 and 623 n.2 (10th Cir. 
1990) (rejecting argument as “silly,” “frivolous,” and a “fantasy”).  
 Likewise, any claim that he is not a “person” subject to taxation under the Internal 
Revenue Code has been rejected numerous times. A citizen or resident of the United 
States is included in the Internal Revenue Code’s definition of a United States person. 26 
U.S.C. § 7701(a)(30)(A). The not-a-person argument has been dismissed by the courts as 
“frivolous,” “patently frivolous,” “fatuous,” and “obviously incorrect.” See Lonsdale v. 
United States, 919 F.2d 1440, 1448 (10th Cir. 1990); United States v. Karlin, 785 F.2d 90, 
91 (3d Cir. 1986); Biermann v. Commissioner, 769 F.2d 707, 708 (11th Cir. 1985); United 
States v. Rice, 659 F.2d 524, 528 (5th Cir. 1981); United States v. Romero, 640 F.2d 1014, 
1016 (9th Cir. 1981). The motion is without merit, and should be denied. 
 RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this 12th day of December, 2008, in Anchorage, 
Alaska.” 

 
*End entirety of opposition pleading. 

 In this maelstrom of § 61(a) case law there’s no reference to 26 USC §§ 83, 212, 1001, 

1011, and 1012, all of which are applicable when calculating the liability for income taxes of 

anyone who received compensation; the law has not operated. Section 61(a) begins with, 

“Except as otherwise provided,” but the government omits that from its citation, citing only cases 

where the evidence didn’t include § 83(a) or these other statutes. The one correct answer to this 

challenge is Talmage v. Comm’r of IRS, which is explored infra.  

 With plain language § 83(a) requires that, when compensation is received in [exchange] 

for services, from the FMV of the compensation, the excess over the “amount paid” for such 

property (cost) is to be included in gross income.  
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§ 83 Property Transferred in Connection with the Performance of Services.  
 (a) If, in connection with the performance of services, property is transferred..., 
the excess of-  
 (1) the fair market value of such property...over,  
 (2) the amount (if any) paid for such property . . . shall be included in the gross 
income of the person who performed such services . . . 

 
 This requires that the “amount paid” for the compensation be established, the “excess” 

identified, and that only such excess be included in gross income. To figure that “amount paid” 

or cost of the compensation, regulation requires that § 1012 and the regulations thereunder be 

applied.  

 
26 CFR 1.83-4(b)(2) If property to which 1.83-1 applies is transferred at an arm’s length, 
the basis of the property in the hands of the transferee shall be determined under section 
1012 and the regulations thereunder. 

 
 With labor being property, and the cost of the compensation, § 1012 will either include it 

or exclude it as a cost. Under § 1012 and its implementing regulations, intangible personal 

property (labor) is not excluded, anywhere.  

 
26 CFR 1.1012-1(a) “ . . . The cost is the amount paid for such property in cash or other 
property.” 

 
 If Congress intended that labor be excluded from that which is cost, or that property to be 

treated as a cost must be property within which one has a basis, § 1012 would have to reflect it; it 

does not, and so labor’s value is a cost. As such a cost, its fair market value (FMV) is deductible 

from gross income under § 212 (individual may deduct costs).  

 The FMV of the labor (contract value) is the value of the cost and it is also known as 

“adjusted basis.” Regulation requires that this amount be “withdrawn” from the amount realized 

in the transaction and that it be “restored to the taxpayer.”  

 
26 CFR 1.1011-1 Adjusted basis.-The adjusted basis... is the cost or other basis 
prescribed in section 1012... 
 
26 CFR 1.1001-1(a) ...from the amount realized upon the sale or exchange there shall be 
withdrawn a sum sufficient to restore the adjusted basis prescribed by section 1011 and 
the regulations thereunder... The amount that remains after the adjusted basis has been 
restored to the taxpayer constitutes the realized gain. 
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 After determining the FMV of the property that is a cost under the law (See 26 CFR 

1.1012-1(a), labor not excluded), and to comply with § 83(a) and 26 CFR 1.1001-1(a), the FMV 

of cost(s), the “amount paid,” the “adjusted basis,” must be subtracted from the amount realized 

(the compensation), including only the excess (if any) in gross income.  

 Regulations under § 83 require that § 1012 be applied to figure the cost of Complainant’s 

compensation. To figure one’s cost (“amount paid”), one can also proceed to 26 CFR 1.83-3(g) 

which says that the term “amount paid” in § 83 refers to the value (the FMV/contract value) of 

any property paid (labor) for the compensation.  

 
26 CFR 1.83-3(g) Amount paid. For the purposes of section 83 and the regulations 
thereunder, the term “amount paid” refers to the value of any money or property paid 
for the transfer of property to which § 83 applies. 
 

 The statute which embraces intangible personal property as a cost (§ 1012) is prescribed 

as the measure of one’s cost when having only sold one’s labor, and 1.83-3(g) does same. To 

impose the amounts now sought from the Complainant the FTB must violate, and deprive him 

of, the provisions of  § 83(a), 212, 1001, 1011, and 1012. The law does not provide that property 

within which one has no basis be excluded from cost; cost equals the FMV of any and all 

property disposed to obtain other property, unless expressly excluded under § 1012. 6   

 As used in statute and regulation, the terms “any” or “any property” are to be construed 

as all inclusive until express statutory exceptions can be cited to support a contention that such 

terms are not all inclusive. (See U.S. v. Monsanto, 491 U.S. 600, 607-611 and (syllabus) (1989); 

United States v. Alvarez-Sanchez, 511 U.S. 350, 357 (1994); U.S. v. Gonzales, 520 U.S. 1, 4-6 

(1997); Department of Housing and Urban Renewal v. Rucker, 535 U.S. 125, 130-31 (2002) 

citing Gonzalez and Monsanto).  

 
1989 - Monsanto - Heroin manufacturer Monsanto argues that he should be allowed to 
keep enough money for attorney’s fees, but the DOJ argues successfully that “any 
property” is all inclusive and therefore means the U.S. can seize any and all property 
unless Monsanto can point to a specific exclusion of attorney’s fees under the law. DOJ 
can seize everything owned by defendant. 
 
1994 - Alvarez - U.S. argues successfully that, because statute expressly provides for 
an exception to “any,” that it is not all inclusive, that a “delay” should not preclude a 

                                                 
6   See also Internal Revenue Code of 1939 §§ 111, 112, 113. 
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criminal defendant’s confession or statement to state police from being used as evidence 
in federal case commenced thereafter. DOJ can use confession sought to be suppressed 
by criminal defendant.  
 
1997 - Gonzales - U.S. argues successfully that “any” in sentencing laws is all inclusive 
and therefore prevents the defendants from serving federal time concurrently with other 
sentences, argues for more jail time and gets it. More jail time for convict.  
 
2002 - Rucker (citing Monsanto and Gonzales) - U.S. argues successfully that “innocent 
owner” defense unavailable to co-tenant of low income housing who, although innocent, 
was subject to the statute’s eviction of an all inclusive “any tenant” of a leased unit where 
prohibited activity had taken place. U.S. can evict the innocent tenant of low income 
housing unit which is scene of prohibited behavior.  

 
And from Monsanto, Id.:  
 

“Section 853’s language is plain and unambiguous. Congress could not have chosen 
stronger words to express its intent that forfeiture be mandatory than § 853(a)’s language 
that upon conviction a person “shall forfeit . . . any property” and that the sentencing 
court “shall order” a forfeiture. Likewise, the statute provides a broad definition of 
property which does not even hint at the idea that assets used for attorney’s fees are not 
included. Every Court of Appeals that has finally passed on this argument has agreed 
with this view. Neither the Act’s legislative history nor legislators’ post-enactment 
statements support respondent’s argument that an exception should be created because 
the statute does not expressly include property to be used for attorney’s fees, or because 
Congress simply did not consider the prospect that forfeiture [491 U.S. 601] would 
reach such property. . . . Moreover, respondent’s admonition that courts should 
construe statutes to avoid decision as to their constitutionality is not license for the 
judiciary to rewrite statutory language. Pp. 606-611.” 7 
 
“In determining the scope of a statute, we look first to its language.” United States v. 
Turkette, 452 U.S. 576, 580 (1981). In the case before us, the language of § 853 is plain 
and unambiguous: all assets falling within its scope are to be forfeited upon 
conviction, with no exception existing for the assets used to pay attorney’s fees -- or 
anything else, for that matter.  
 As observed above, § 853(a) provides that a person convicted of the offenses 
charged in respondent’s indictment “shall forfeit . . . any property” that was derived from 
the commission of these offenses. After setting out this rule, § 853(a) repeats later in its 
text that upon conviction a sentencing court “shall order” forfeiture of all property 
described in § 853(a). Congress could not have chosen stronger words to express its 
intent that forfeiture be mandatory in cases where the statute applied, or broader words to 
define the scope of what was to be forfeited. Likewise, the statute provides a broad 
definition of “property” when describing what types of assets are within the section’s 
scope: “real property . . . tangible and intangible personal property, including rights, 
privileges, interests, claims, and securities.” 21 U.S.C. § 853(b) (1982 ed., Supp.V). 

                                                 
7  See U.S. v. Monsanto, 491 U.S. 600 (syllabus) (1989). 
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Nothing in this all-inclusive listing even hints at the idea that assets to be used to pay 
an attorney are not “property” within the statute’s meaning. 
 Nor are we alone in concluding that the statute is unambiguous in failing to 
exclude assets that could be used to pay an attorney from its definition of forfeitable 
property. This argument, advanced by respondent here, see Brief for Respondent 12-19, 
has been unanimously rejected by every Court of Appeals that has finally passed on it, 
as it was by the Second Circuit panel below, see 836 F.2d at 78-80; id. at 85-86 (Oakes, 
J., dissenting); even the judges who concurred on statutory grounds in the en banc 
decision did not accept this position, see 852 F.2d at 1405-1410 (Winter, J., concurring). 
We note also that the Brief for American Bar Association as Amicus Curiae 6, frankly 
admits that the statute “on [its] face, broadly cover[s] all property derived from alleged 
criminal activity and contain[s] no specific exemption for property used to pay bona 
fide attorneys’ fees.”  
 Respondent urges us, nonetheless, to interpret the statute to exclude such 
property for several reasons. Principally, respondent contends that we should create 
such an exemption because the statute does not expressly include property to be used 
for attorneys’ fees . . . In support, respondent observes that the legislative history is 
“silent” on this question, and that the House and Senate debates fail to discuss this 
prospect. But this proves nothing[.] The fact that the forfeiture provision reaches assets 
that could be used to pay attorney’s fees, even though it contains no express provisions 
to this effect, “‘does not demonstrate ambiguity’” in the statute: “‘It demonstrates 
breadth.’” Sedima, S.P.R.L. v. Imrex Co., 473 U.S. 479, 499 (1985) (quoting Haroco, 
Inc. v. American Nat. Bank & Trust Co. of Chicago, 747 F.2d 384, 398 (CA7 1984)). The 
statutory provision at issue here is broad and unambiguous, and Congress’ failure to 
supplement § 853(a)’s comprehensive phrase -- “any property” --  with an exclamatory 
“and we even mean assets to be used to pay an attorney” does not lessen the force of 
the statute’s plain language.” 8  
 
“As we have noted before, such post-enactment views “form a hazardous basis for 
inferring the intent” behind a statute, United States v. Price, 361 U.S. 304, 313 (1960); 
instead, Congress’ intent is “best determined by [looking to] the statutory language that 
it chooses,” Sedima, S.P.R.L., supra, at 495, n.13. . . . Finally, respondent urges us, see 
Brief for Respondent 2029, to invoke a variety of general canons of statutory 
construction, as well as several prudential doctrines of this Court, to create the statutory 
exemption he advances; among these doctrines is our admonition that courts should 
construe statutes to avoid decision as to their constitutionality. See, e.g., Edward J. 
DeBartolo Corp. v. Florida Gulf Coast Building & Constr. Trades Council, 485 U.S. 
568, 575 (1988); NLRB. v. Catholic Bishop of Chicago, 440 U.S. 490, 500 (1979). We 
respect these canons, and they are quite often useful in close cases, or when statutory 
language is ambiguous. But we have observed before that such “interpretative canon[s 
are] not a license for the judiciary to rewrite language enacted by the legislature.” 
United States v. Albertini, 472 U.S. 675, 680 (1985). Here, the language is clear and the 
statute comprehensive: § 853 does not exempt assets to be used for attorney’s fees from 
its forfeiture provisions. 9  

                                                 
8  See Monsanto, Id., at 607-09. 
9  See Monsanto, Id., at 610-11. 
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 Since the 1989 Monsanto decision regarding “any property,” three very recent decisions 

(’94, ’97  and ’02, supra) deal directly with the same question as to how to interpret the term 

“any,” the question as to whether it is all inclusive or is subject to arbitrary derogation. The 

inclusion here of lengthy excerpts is intended to offer appreciable input upon the topic and is not 

intended to delay or hinder process.  

 Here, in this unanimous 2002 decision (REHNQUIST, C.J. delivered opinion, BEYER, J. 

took no part), the Supreme Court draws upon Monsanto for guidance in another instance hinged 

upon interpretation of the term “any,” affirming the claim made herein.  

 
“That this is so seems evident from the plain language of the statute. It provides that -  
 

each public housing authority shall utilize leases which . . . provide that . . . any 
drug-related criminal activity on or off such premises, engaged in by a public 
housing tenant, any member of the tenant’s household, or any guest or other person 
under the tenant’s control, shall be cause for termination of tenancy.  
 

42 U.S.C. § 1437d(l)(6) (1994 Ed., Supp.V). The en banc Court of Appeals thought the 
statute did not address “the level of personal knowledge or fault that is required for 
eviction.” 237 F.3d at 1120. Yet Congress’ decision not to impose any qualification in 
the statute, combined with its use of the term “any” to modify “drug-related criminal 
activity,” precludes any knowledge requirement. See United States v. Monsanto, 491 
U.S. 600, 609 (1989). As we have explained, “the word ‘any’ has an expansive 
meaning, that is, ‘one or some indiscriminately of whatever kind.’” United States v. 
Gonzales, 520 U.S. 1, 5 (1997). Thus, any drug-related activity engaged in by the 
specified persons is grounds for termination, not just drug-related activity that the tenant 
knew or should have known about.” 10 

 
 Below is an excerpt from U.S. v. Gonzales, 520 U.S. 1, 4-6 (1997) just cited in Dept. of 

Housing & Urban Renewal v. Rucker, Id..  

 
“Our analysis begins, as always, with the statutory text. Section 924(c)(1) provides:  
 

 Whoever, during and in relation to any . . . drug trafficking crime . . . for which he 
may be prosecuted in a court of the United States, uses or carries a firearm, shall, in 
addition to the punishment provided for such crime . . . , be sentenced to 
imprisonment for five years. . . . Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the 
court shall not place on probation or suspend the sentence of any person convicted 
of a violation of this subsection, nor shall the term of imprisonment imposed under 

                                                 
10 See Department of Housing and Urban Renewal v. Rucker, 535 U.S. 125, 130-31 (2002).  
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this subsection run concurrently with any other term of imprisonment including that 
imposed for the . . . drug trafficking crime in which the firearm was used or carried. 
 

18 U.S.C. § 924(c)(1) (emphasis added). The question we face is whether the phrase “any 
other term of imprisonment” “means what it says, or whether it should be limited to some 
subset” of prison sentences, Maine v. Thiboutot, 448 U.S. 1, 4 (1980) -- namely, only 
federal sentences. Read naturally, the word “any” has an expansive meaning, that is, 
“one or some indiscriminately of whatever kind.” Webster’s Third New International 
Dictionary 97 (1976). Congress did not add any language limiting the breadth of that 
word, and so we must read § 924(c) as referring to all “term[s] of imprisonment,” 
including those imposed by state courts. Cf. United States v. Alvarez-Sanchez, 511 U.S. 
350, 358 (1994) (noting that statute referring to “any law enforcement officer” includes 
“federal, state, or local” officers); Collector v. Hubbard, 12 Wall. 1, 15 (1871) (stating 
“it is quite clear” that a statute prohibiting the filing of suit “in any court” “includes 
the State courts as well as the Federal courts,” because “there is not a word in the 
[statute] tending to show that the words ‘in any court’ are not used in their ordinary 
sense”). There is no basis in the text for limiting § 924(c) to federal sentences. 
 In his dissenting opinion, JUSTICE STEVENS suggests that the word “any” as 
used in the first sentence of § 924(c) “unquestionably has the meaning ‘any federal.’” 
Post at 14. In that first sentence, however, Congress explicitly limited the scope of the 
phrase “any crime of violence or drug trafficking crime” to those “for which [a 
defendant] may be prosecuted in a court of the United States.” Given that Congress 
expressly limited the phrase “any crime” to only federal crimes, we find it significant that 
no similar restriction modifies the phrase “any other term of imprisonment,” which 
appears only two sentences later and is at issue in this case. See Russello v. United States, 
464 U.S. 16, 23 (1983) (“‘Where Congress includes particular language in one section 
of a statute but omits it in another section of the same Act, it is generally presumed that 
Congress acts intentionally and purposely in the disparate inclusion or exclusion’”).  
 The Court of Appeals also found ambiguity in Congress’ decision, in drafting § 
924(c), to prohibit concurrent sentences instead of simply mandating consecutive 
sentences. 65 F.3d at 820. Unlike the lower court, however, we see nothing remarkable 
(much less ambiguous) about Congress’ choice of words. Because consecutive and 
concurrent sentences are exact opposites, Congress implicitly required one when it 
prohibited the other. This “ambiguity” is, in any event, beside the point, because this 
phraseology has no bearing on whether Congress meant § 924(c) sentences to run 
consecutively only to other federal terms of imprisonment. 
 Given the straightforward statutory command, there is no reason to resort to 
legislative history. Connecticut Nat. Bank v. Germain, 503 U.S. 249, 254 (1992). Indeed, 
far from clarifying the statute, the legislative history only muddies the waters. The 
excerpt from the Senate Report accompanying the 1984 amendment to § 924(c), relied 
upon by the Court of Appeals, reads:  
 

[T]he Committee intends that the mandatory sentence under the revised subsection 
924(c) be served prior to the start of the sentence for the underlying or any other 
offense. 
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S.Rep. at 313-314. This snippet of legislative history injects into § 924(c) an entirely new 
idea -- that a defendant must serve the five-year prison term for his firearms conviction 
before any other sentences. This added requirement, however, is “in no way anchored 
in the text of the statute.” Shannon v. United States, 512 U.S. 573, 583 (1994). 11 
 

From United States v. Alvarez-Sanchez, 511 U.S. 350, 357 (1994):  
 

“Respondent contends that he was under “arrest or other detention” for purposes of § 
3501(c) during the interview at the Sheriff’s Department, and that his statement to the 
Secret Service agents constituted a confession governed by this subsection. In 
respondent’s view, it is irrelevant that he was in the custody of the local authorities, 
rather than that of the federal agents, when he made the statement. Because the statute 
applies to persons in the custody of “any” law enforcement officer or law enforcement 
agency, respondent suggests that the § 3501(c) 6-hour time period begins to run 
whenever a person is arrested by local, state, or federal officers.  
 We believe respondent errs in placing dispositive weight on the broad statutory 
reference to “any” law enforcement officer or agency without considering the rest of 
the statute.” 12 
 

*End excerpts.  

 In reviewing U.S. Tax Court’s disposition of the 26 USC § 83 claim we recall that its 

restrictive application of the term “any” allowing some property (labor, property with no tangible 

basis or cost) to be excluded under 26 CFR’s 1.83-3(g)’s reference to “any money or property” 

was its only exculpatory reasoning or thread of logic to overcome the claim. In the cases above, 

decided in 1989, 1994, 1997, and 2002, Tax Court’s reasoning regarding “any property” is 

clearly dismembered as arbitrary and therefore impermissible. The correct answer is Talmage v. 

Comm’r of IRS, USTC docket #339-95, 71 T.C.M. 2370 (1996): 

 
“Because the issues are purely legal, this case is ripe for summary judgment. Tax 

protester arguments like the claim that wages are not taxable income also suffice (as an 
alternative to dismissal, and in the absence of better argument) to justify summary 
judgment for the respondent. (protester cite omitted). Even if wages are, in effect, an 
exchange of value for equal value, they are nevertheless taxable income. (protester cite 
omitted) And even if we apply section 1001, his basis is determined under sections 1011 
and 1012 as his cost, not fair market value. Since he paid nothing for his labor, his cost 
and thus his basis are zero. (protester cite omitted) Consequently, even under section 
1001, his taxable income from his labor is his total gain reduced by nothing, i.e., his wages.  

“Petitioner’s primary argument is that section 83, Property Transferred in Connection 
with the Performance of Services, has the effect of exempting his wages from income tax 
because it requires us to apply section 1012, which specifies that cost should be used to 

                                                 
11  See U.S. v. Gonzales, 520 U.S. 1, 4-6 (1997).  
12  See United States v. Alvarez-Sanchez, 511 U.S. 350, 357 (1994).  
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determine the basis of property (unless the Code provides otherwise) to determine the 
extent to which wages constitute taxable income. Petitioner asserts that he “paid” for his 
wages with his labor and that section 83 allows the value of his labor as a cost to be offset 
against his wages, thereby exempting them from tax. Section 83 provides that property 
received for services is taxable to the recipient of the property to the extent of its fair 
market value minus the amount (if any) paid for the property. In attempting to equate his 
wages with property for which he has a tax cost, petitioner’s argument is nothing more than 
a variation of the wages-are-not-income claim frequently advanced by tax protesters, and it 
is completely without merit. (protester cites omitted) Petitioner’s argument fails for the 
same reason that other protester’s arguments fail; the worker’s cost for his services-and 
thus his basis-is zero, not their fair market value.”  

 
*End quote from Talmage in US Tax Court. The appeal:  
 

“Stephen V. Talmage appeals from the tax court’s orders (1) entered March 11, 1996, 
granting summary judgment to the Commissioner and imposing a penalty under 26 
U.S.C. § 6673(a)(1)(B) (1994) for pursuing a frivolous action in tax court; and, (2) 
entered April 17, 1996, denying his motion for reconsideration. We affirm, based on the 
reasoning of the tax court.” 

 
See Talmage v. Comm’r of IRS, 101 F.3d 695 (CA4  Nov. 15, 1996) (unpublished decision). 

 In Tax Court’s decisions the policy of excluding the value of personal services is 

articulated without pointing to a lawful basis for such an exclusion, and this upheld by the 4th 

Circuit which makes the same leap in logic. However, before and after this the US gov’t won 

four Supreme Court cases arguing that such an arbitrary exclusion from “any” or “any property” 

is impermissible. This is why Talmage was not cited by the DOJ in Warner when he presented 

this challenge in his Alaska criminal trial; the exclusion of the value of personal services from 

“any money or property paid” and from “cash or other property” is arbitrary. Who wins out and 

why? When interpreting 26 USC §§ 83 and 1012, and 26 CFR 1.83-3(g) and 1.1012-1(a), is it 

Tax Court’s arbitrary exclusion or the U.S. Supreme Court’s prescription that an exclusion not be 

arbitrary that prevails? Congressional mandate or executive and judicial contrivance? 

 A very noteworthy point is that we see in each of those cases the U.S. as party movant to 

the argument that “any” is all inclusive, the party seeking to benefit under that interpretation. 

When the taxing authorities are on the offense the term “any” means everything, but when the 

lowly citizen demands the same reading it must be refused so the U.S. can take his paycheck. 

This alone distinguishes those controversies from this one. Naturally, lawfully, fairly, as 

taxpayers, every American has the right to expect from any court treatment in kind, lest they be 

the victim of an exaction. (See 26 CFR 601.106(f)(1), exaction violates due process).  
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(1) Rule I. An exaction by the U.S. Government, which is not based upon law, statutory 
or otherwise, is a taking of property without due process of law, in violation of the Fifth 
Amendment to the U.S. Constitution. Accordingly, an Appeals representative in his or 
her conclusions of fact or application of the law, shall hew to the law and the recognized 
standards of legal construction. It shall be his or her duty to determine the correct amount 
of the tax, with strict impartiality as between the taxpayer and the Government, and 
without favoritism or discrimination as between taxpayers. 

 
 Regulation 26 CFR 1.83-3(g) must be read to include the value of personal services in its 

prescription that “the value of any money or property paid” be deemed to be an “amount paid” 

for the purposes of 26 USC 83(a).  

 The FTB wants it both ways, but the Supreme Court has already ruled in favor of only 

one way; “any property” means EVERYTHING. The FTB must offend Monsanto and other 

Supreme Court rulings to argue for the exclusion of the FMV of personal services from the 

language of 26 USC §§ 83 (“the value of any money or property paid” in 26 CFR 1.83-3(g)) and 

§ 1012 (“cash or other property”), and this alone, as proven through repeated litigation of this 

very claim, is the sole source of the FTB’s ability to tax as gross income the value of personal 

services actually rendered by the Complainant.   

 The posture of the FTB and the contrast to Monsanto to which it amounts is quite easily 

explained. I am siding, and will act in accordance, with Monsanto:  

 
                               - THIS -                            vs.                             - THIS - 
               California Franchise Tax Board |  U.S. Supreme Court and U.S. Department of  
            and Commissioner of IRS say that |        Justice in Gonzales, Rucker, Monsanto,  
       “Any property” excludes some property |  Alvarez, regarding “any” and “any  property.” 
           i.e., labor, resulting in an income tax | (IRS Pub.17, 26 CFR 1.83-3(g), 1.1012-1(a)) 
                       on the FMV of labor.  |    “Any property” includes all property, like 
                  |       labor; no income tax on FMV of labor. 
 
 In case law under § 83 the term “amount paid” is universally equated with the term and 

concept of “cost.” The cost of Complainant’s compensation is figured by applying the provisions 

of 26 USC § 83(a), 26 CFR 1.83-3(g), and § 1012 and the regulations thereunder. (See 26 CFR 

1.83-4(b)(2)). 

 The term “amount paid” is defined as the value of any property the Complainant paid 

for his compensation for services. (See 26 CFR 1.83-3(g)). Regulation 26 CFR 1.1012-1(a) 

defines his cost as “cash or other property” and fails to exclude from cost that property within 
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which he has no basis. When regulation is read in light of Monsanto, as Complainant demands 

and subscribes, the value of his personal services is a cost, expressly excluded from gross income 

as an “amount paid” by  the terms of § 83(a).  

 
“The regulations...now govern, and will continue to govern, the abbreviated application 
process. See Fort Stewart Schools v. FLRA, 495 U.S. 641, 654, 110 S.Ct. 2043, 2051, 109 
L.Ed.2d 659 (1990). No matter what an agency said in the past, or what it did not say, 
after an agency issues regulations it must abide by them.” 13  
 

 The Supreme Court has ruled that a tax on the FMV of labor constitutes a diminution of 

compensation, that it constitutes the taking of part of a contract for the sale of labor.14 It is said 

that the 16th Amendment did not extend Congress’ taxing power to objects or subjects previously 

immune, 15 and the right of contract is held in high regard: 

 
“Included in the right or personal liberty and the right of private property, partaking of 
the nature of each is the right to make contracts for the acquisition of property. Chief 
among such contracts is that of personal employment, by which labor and other services 
are exchanged for money or other forms of property.” 16  

 
Summary of this claim:  

 Under law, to tax the FMV of services actually rendered, Complainant must be deprived 

of the provisions of Cal. Code §§ 17201(a), (b), (c), and §§ 17081 and 18031, and 26 USC §§ 83, 

212, 1001, 1011, and 1012. The law (26 CFR 1.83-3(g)) embraces the FMV of labor as a cost 

(“value of any money or property paid”), despite the fact that it is property within which 

Complainant has no basis. Property within which one has no basis is not excluded from cost 

under the law.  

 The FTB excludes from cost the value of Complainant’s services merely upon the fact 

that it is property within which he has no basis, but such an exclusion is unauthorized under 

provisions which embrace ALL property as a cost. Complainant must violate the subject 

provisions when he fails to restore the “adjusted basis” to himself. Compliance requires that he 

allows only the amount that remains thereafter to be taxed as “realized gain,” as required under 

26 CFR 1.1001-1(a).  

                                                 
13  See Schering Corp. v. Shalala, 995 F.2d 1103 (D.C.Cir.1993). 
14   See Evans v. Gore, 253 U.S. 245, 40 S.Ct. 550 (1920). 
15  See Peck v. Lowe, 247 U.S. 165; Stanton v. Baltic Mining Co., 240 U.S. 103. 
16  See Coppage v. Kansas, 236 U.S. 1, 14 (1915). 
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CONCLUSION & VERIFICATION 

 
 The burden is squarely upon the FTB to identify the legitimate promulgation which does 

not create an application or requirement lacking clear statutory foundation. 

 
 “I agree with the Court that the Internal Revenue Code provision and the 
corresponding Treasury Regulations that control consolidated filings are best interpreted 
as requiring a single-entity approach in calculating product liability loss. I write 
separately, however, because I respectfully disagree with the dissent’s suggestion that, 
when a provision of the Code and the corresponding regulations are ambiguous, this 
Court should defer to the Government’s interpretation. See post this page (opinion of 
Stevens, J.). At a bare minimum, in cases such as this one, in which the complex 
statutory and regulatory scheme lends itself to any number of interpretations, we 
should be inclined to rely on the traditional canon that construes revenue-raising laws 
against their drafter. See Leavell v. Blades, 237 Mo. 695, 700-701, 141 S.W. 893, 894 
(1911) (“When the tax gatherer puts his finger on the citizen, he must also put his 
finger on the law permitting it”); United States v. Merriam, 263 U.S. 179, 188 (1923) 
(“If the words are doubtful, the doubt must be resolved against the Government and in 
favor of the taxpayer”); Bowers v. New York & Albany Lighterage Co., 273 U.S. 346, 
350 (1927) (“The provision is part of a taxing statute; and such laws are to be 
interpreted liberally in favor of the taxpayers”). Accord, American Net & Twine Co. v. 
Worthington, 141 U.S. 468, 474 (1891); Benziger v. United States, 192 U.S. 38, 55 
(1904).” 17 

 
  A tax must be imposed by clear and unequivocal language. Where the construction of a 

tax law is doubtful, the doubt is to be resolved in favor of whom upon which the tax is sought to 

be laid. (See Spreckles Sugar Refining v. McClain, 192 U.S. 397, 416 (1904); Gould v. Gould, 

245 U.S. 151, 153 (1917); Smietanka v. First Trust & Savings Bank, 257 U.S. 602, 606 (1922); 

Lucas v. Alexander, 279 U.S. 573, 577 (1929); Crooks v. Harrelson, 282 U.S. 55 (1930); Burnet 

v. Niagra Falls Brewing Co., 282 U.S. 648, 654 (1931); Miller v. Standard Nut Margarine Co., 

284 U.S. 498, 508 (1932); Gregory v. Helvering, 293 U.S. 465, 469 (1935); Hassett v. Welch, 

303 U.S. 303, 314 (1938); U.S. v. Batchelder, 442 U.S. 114, 123 (1978); Security Bank of 

Minnesota v. C.I.R., 994 F.2d 432, 436 (CA8 1993)).  

 
“Void for vagueness simply means that criminal responsibility should not attach where 
one could not reasonably understand that his contemplated conduct is proscribed. United 
States v. Harris, 347 US 612, 617 (1954).”  

 

                                                 
17  See United Dominion Industries, Inc. v. United States, 532 US 822 (2001).  
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See US. v National Dairy Corp., 372 US 29, 32 (1963); see also Browning-Ferris Industries of 

Vermont v. Kelso Disposal, Inc., 492 US 257, 300-301 (1989); US v. Classic, 313 US 299, 331 

(1941). Albert Einstein said: 

 
“The hardest thing in the world to understand is the income tax.”  

 
See: http://www.irs.gov/uac/Tax-Quotes. 

 What could be simpler? Complainant claims that the law recognizes the value of his 

personal services as a cost or “amount paid,” so compensation for services is not profit or 

“gross income.” In all of this there is an obvious reliance by Complainant upon decisions of the 

U.S. Supreme Court on the part of the Complainant. 

  
“It is, of course, true that Supreme Court decisions are on occasion overruled and that the 
opportunity to overrule them would never arise if litigants did not continue to challenge 
their validity. But, in this context at least, it is unnecessary to penalize the United States’ 
proper reliance on our past decisions in order to re-examine them, since there is no bar to 
a suit by plaintiffs below directly against Oklahoma for recovery of the tax. Cf. 
Poafpybitty v. Skelly Oil Co., 390 U.S. 365 (1968). And if the doctrine of stare decisis 
has any meaning at all, it requires that people in their everyday affairs be able to rely 
on our decisions and not be needlessly penalized for such reliance. Cf. Flood v. Kuhn, 
407 U.S. 258, 283 (1972); Wallace v. M’Connell, 13 Pet. 136, 150 (1839).” 

 
See U.S. v. Mason, 412 U.S. 391, 399-400 (1973). 

 Complainant expects clear answers that include a reflection as to why the arbitrary 

exclusion of the value of personal services from “any money or property” (in Talmage) prevails 

over the four Supreme Court decisions that say no such exclusion is permissible unless the law 

provides for such. Please explain in full how Cal. Code §§ 17201(a), (b), (c), and §§ 17081 and 

18031 operated in your conclusion that Complainant owes the sums you are demanding from 

him on a daily basis. 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

///  
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